INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDER OF TAHOE LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
Opinion

What we have audited

The financial statements of Tahoe Life Insurance Company Limited (the "Company") set out on pages 9
to 61, which comprise:
• the income statement for the year ended 31 December 20 18;
• the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;
• the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018;
• the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;
• the cash flow statement for the year then ended; and
• the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies.
Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company
as at 31 December 2018, and of its fmancial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA").
Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the
HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
Independence

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the HKICPA' s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants ("the Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.
Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the directors' report on pages I to 5 and financial information set out on pages 62 to 76 for
the purpose of submission to the Insurance Authority, but does not include the financial statements and
our auditor's report thereon.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the fmancial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDER OF TAHOE LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
Other Information (Continued)
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
Responsibilities of Directors and Audit Committee for the Financial Statements
The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors .either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of
the Companies Act 1981 ofBermuda and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.
• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness ofthe Company's internal control.
• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.
• Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDER OF TAHOE LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Continued)
•

r}

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

J

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 28 March 2019

j
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TAHOE LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

n

INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
Note

2018
HK$

2017
HK$

Gross insurance premium income

3,160,624,177

1,93 3,291,897

Insurance premium ceded to reinsurers

(285,202,351)

(305,657,648)

Net insurance premium income

2,875,421,826

1,627,634,249

(607,190,672)

1,834,178,206

Gross claims, surrenders, interest and other insurance
policy benefits

1,124,627,585

1,161,200,688

Amounts recoverable from reinsurers

(227,502,016)

(219,606,663)

897,125,569

941,594,025

1,024,537,880

1,841,638,852

Income

Investment (loss )/income and other income

5

Expenses

Net claims, surrenders, interest and other insurance
policy benefits

..

Increase in future insurance liabilities under insurance
contracts
Impairment of intangible assets - distribution
agreement

10

Management and other expenses

6

Dividends to insurance policyholders

Loss before taxation
Taxation

7

Loss after taxation

683,235,413
660,127,030

572,510,971

118,662,185

121,644,486

(432,221,510)

(698,811,292)

(23,681,957)

(13,407,982)

( 455,903,467)

(712,219,274)

The notes on pages 16 to 61 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TAHOE LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
2018
HK$

2017
HK$

(455,903,467)

(712,219,274)

Items that mav be reclassified to income statement
Available-for-sale financial assets:
disposals for the year
movement in fair value reserve

(114,156,039)
(2,041,020)

(530,365)
31,159,574

Total comprehensive expenses for the year

(572,100,526)

(681,590,065)

Loss after taxation
Other comprehensive income for the year (after tax)

The notes on pages 16 to 61 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TAHOE LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER2018

2018
HK$

2017
HK$

9
10

50,042,483
1,759,575,060

3,265,652
1,815,893,428

11
13
12
14

15,519,251,169
23,646,698
30,135,060
1,633,382,574

13,391,016,305
25,489,461
222,831,830
1,601,022,602

17/26
15
16

54,380,768
477,138,614
2,746,347,576

1,197,845
103,984,824
2,891,638,046

Note

Assets
Property and equipment
Intangible assets
Trading securities and fmancial assets designated at
fair value through profit or loss
Derivative financial instruments
Available-for-sale financial assets
Reinsurance assets and insurance debtors
Amount due from a fellow subsidiary and the
intermediate holding company
Other receivables and prepayments
Bank balances

____22~2._~12_001QQ~_____20,_Q?6,3 39'-~~--

Total assets
Liabilities
17/26

Amounts due to a fellow subsidiary
Liabilities under insurance contracts
- future insurance liabilities
- insurance creditors
Derivative financial instruments
Other payables
Current income tax liabilities

18
20
13
21
22

47,294,854

87,969,630

14,147,531,194
3,648,033,183
16,760,448
1,177,618,795
10,489,250

13,097,985,650
2,510,905,613
7,255,220
586,477,652
273,424

3,246,172,278

3, 765,4 72,804

Totalliabilities
Net assets

The notes on pages 16 to 61 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TAHOE LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018
2018
HK$

2017
HK$

1' 196,200,650
2,049,971,628

1'196,200,650
2,569,272,154

3,246,172,278

3,765,472,804

Note
Equity
23
24

Share capital
Reserves
Total equity

The fmancial statements on pages 9 to 61 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors
on 28 March 2019.

/t<.b.¥. l . .!· f . . . .
Director
Huang Qisen

Director
GeYong

~ ~ )U a ~v{(211

~~~~~ecutive

(/

Choi W ai Y ee Paula

The notes on pages 16 to 61 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TAHOE LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
Attributable to equity holders of the Company

Share Capital
HK$

Investment
Revaluation
Reserve
HK$

Balance at 1 January 2017

446,200,650

101,604,633

Proceeds from shares
issued (Note 23)

750,000,000

Capital
Reserve
HK$

Retained
Earnings
HK$

Total
HK$

1,177,257,586

1, 725,062,869

750,000,000

Shareholder's contribution
for the year (Note 28)

1,972,000,000

Total comprehensive
expenses for 2017
- disposals for the year
- movement in fair value
reserve
- movement during the
year

1,972,000,000

(530,365)

(530,365)

31,159,574

31,159,574
(712,219,274)

(712,219,274)

Balance at 31 December
2017

1' 196,200,650

132,233,842

1,972,000,000

465,038,312

3, 765,4 72,804

Balance at 1 January 2018,
as per above

1' 196,200,650

132,233,842

1,972,000,000

465,038,312

3,765,472,804

Shareholder's contribution
for the year (Note 28)
Total comprehensive
expenses for 2018
- disposals for the year
- movement in fair value
reserve
- movement during the
year
Balance at 31 December
2018

52,800,000

-

1' 196,200,650

52,800,000

(114,156,039)

(114,156,039)

(2,041,020)

(2,041,020)

16,036,783

2,024,800,000

The notes on pages 16 to 61 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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(455,903,467)

(455,903,467)

9,134,845

3,246,172,278

I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I

TAHOE LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
Note

25

Net cash outflow from operating activities

2017
HK$

__(?~9,509 ,~86)_____Q_~0,'!_~9 ,~_!?2_

Investing activities
Purchase of property and equipment
Purchase of intangible asset
Sales proceeds from disposal of investment properties
Interest received
Dividend received

9
10

(51,917,253)
(11,674,423)

5

373,498,938
134,311,754

(2,994,061)
(4,471,890)
510,000,000
330,693,477
136,669,933

444,219,016

969,897,459

Net cash inflow from investing activities
Financing activities

750,000,000

23

Proceeds from shares issued

750,000,000

Net cash inflow from financing activities
(Decrease )/increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

( 145,290,4 70)
2,891,638,046

1,338,948,433
1,552,689,613

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

2,746,347,576

2,891,638,046

1,893,716,443
852,631,133

1,245,731,582
1,645,906,464

2,746,347,576

2,891,638,046

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents at 31 December
Fixed term deposits
Current and savings accounts

I
I
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2018
HK$

TAHOE LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities:
Other Assets

Intangible assets
HK$
(Note 10)
Balances as at
1 January 2017
Cash flows
Acquisition of intangible assets distribution agreement (non-cash)
(Note 28)
Capitalisation of shareholder's loan
(non-cash) (note 28)
Other non-cash movements (noncash)

Liabilities from Financing Activities
Amount due to
immediate holding
company Other payables
HK$
HK$
(Note 28)
(Note 21)

Total
HK$

29,731,077

(156,809,682)

(127 ,078,605)

4,471,890

44,466,465

48,938,355

2,500,000,000

(1,972,000,000)

(528,000,000)

1,972,000,000

1,972,000,000

{71823092539}

532865,565

(664,443,974)

Balances as at
31 December 2017

1,815,893,428

(586,477,652)

1,229,415, 776

Balances as at
1 January 2018, as above

1,815,893,428

(586,477,652)

1,229,415,776

11,674,423

(638,554,587)

(626,880,164)

52,800,000

52,800,000

{5,386,556}

{732379,3472

{1,177,618, 7952

581,956,265

Cash flows
Capitalisation of shareholder's loan
(non-cash) (note 28)
Other non-cash movements (noncash)
Balances as at
31 December 2018

{67,992,791 2
1, 759,575,060

-

The notes on pages 16 to 61 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TAHOE LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1

General information

The principal activity of Tahoe Life Insurance Company Limited (the "Company") is the
writing of life and annuity direct insurance business. It also underwrites investment-linked
policies. All these products are offered to the domestic market and the Company operates in
Hong Kong.
The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The principal place of
business is Suites 1501-07 & 13-16, 15/F, Cityplaza One, 1111 King's Road, Taikoo Shing,
Hong Kong.
The directors consider the immediate holding company is Thaihot Investment (Bermuda)
Company Limited, a company incorporated in Bermuda, and the intermediate holding company
is Everwin Enterprise (Hong Kong) Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong. The
directors consider that the ultimate holding company is Tahoe Investment Group Company
Limited, a company incorporated in the People's Republic of China.
The Company's financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise
stated. These fmancial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on
28 March 2019.
2

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set
out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the reporting years presented,
unless otherwise stated.
2.1

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs" is a collective term which includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards ("HKASs") and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"), and accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified
by the revaluation of available-for-sale fmancial assets, fmancial assets held for trading,
financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative instruments) at fair value through
profit or loss which are carried at fair value.
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the
process of applying the Company's accounting policies. Changes in assumptions may have a
significant impact on the financial statements in the period the assumptions changed.
Management believes that the underlying assumptions are appropriate and that the Company's
fmancial statements therefore present the financial position and results fairly. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the financial statements, are disclosed in Note 3.
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TAHOE LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
2

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

a) New and amended standards adopted by the Company
The following amendments to standards have been adopted by the Company for the
first time for the financial year ended 31 December 2018:
•
•
•

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers, and
Annual improvement to HKFRS Standards 2014-2016 Cycle
HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration
(new interpretation)

The adoption of the above new and amended standards do not have a material impact to
the Company.
Other Standards, amendments and interpretation which are effective for the financial
year beginning on 1 January 2018 are not material to the Company.
b) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

t

A number of new standards and amendments to standards and interpretations have not
been adopted or have not been early adopted in preparing these financial statements.
None of these is expected to have a significant effect on the financial statements of the
Company, except for the following standards:
HKFRS 9, "Financial instruments"
HKFRS 9 has three financial asset classification categories for investments in debt
instruments: amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income ("OCI")
and fair value through profit or loss. Classification is driven by the entity's business
model for managing the debt instruments and their contractual cash flow characteristics.
Investments in equity instruments are always measured at fair value. However,
management can make an irrevocable election to present changes in fair value in OCI,
provided the instrument is not held for trading. If the equity instrument is held for
trading, changes in fair value are presented in profit or loss. For financial liabilities
there are two classification categories: amortised cost and fair value through profit or
loss. Where non-derivative financial liabilities are designated at fair value through
profit or loss, the changes in the fair value due to changes in the liability's own credit
risk are recognised in OCI, unless such changes in fair value would create an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss, in which case, all fair value movements are
recognised in profit or loss. There is no subsequent recycling of the amounts in OCI to
profit or loss. For financial liabilities held for trading (including derivative fmancial
liabilities), all changes in fair value are presented in profit or loss.
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TAHOE LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (Continued)

b) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted (Continued)
HKFRS 9, "Financial instruments" (Continued)
HKFRS 9 introduces a new model for the recognition of impairment losses - the
expected credit losses (ECL) model, which constitutes a change from the incurred loss
model in HKAS 39. HKFRS 9 contains a 'three stage' approach, which is based on the
change in credit quality of financial assets since initial recognition. Assets move
through the three stages as credit quality changes and the stages dictate how an entity
measures impairment losses and applies the effective interest rate method. The new
rules mean that on initial recognition of a non-credit impaired fmancial asset carried at
amortised cost a day-1 loss equal to the 12-month ECL is recognised in profit or loss.
In the case of accounts receivables this day-1 loss will be equal to their lifetime ECL.
Where there is a significant increase in credit risk, impairment is measured using
lifetime ECL rather than 12-month ECL.
HKFRS 9 applies to all hedging relationships, with the exception of portfolio fair value
hedges of interest rate risk. The new guidance better aligns hedge accounting with the
risk management activities of an entity and provides relief from the more "rule-based"
approach ofHKAS 39.

I
I
I
I
I
I

The standard is mandatorily effective for financial periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018. However, the standard provides a temporary exemption for insurer that
permits, but does not require, the insurer to apply HKAS 39 "Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement" rather than HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning
before 1 January 2021 if the criteria is met. The Company concluded that it qualifies for
temporary exemption from HKFRS 9 as the percentage of the total carrying amount of
its liabilities connected with insurance relative to the total carrying amount of all its
liabilities is greater than 90 per cent and it has not previously applied any version of
HKFRS 9, other than only the requirements for the presentation of gains and losses on
financial liabilities designated as at fair value through profit or loss.

- 18-

TAHOE LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (Continued)

b) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted (Continued)
HKFRS 9, "Financial instruments" (Continued)
The fair value of financial assets includes only trading securities and financial assets
designated at fair value through profit or loss, derivative fmancial instruments and
financial assets designated at available-for-sales as at 31 December 2018 and their
respective change of value during the year were as follows:

Fair value as at 31
December 2018

Fair value change
for the year ended
31 December
2018

Nil

Nil

- Not meet SPPI

30,135,060

(2,041,020)

Financial assets held for trading
Financial assets that are managed and whose
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis

95,356,268

1,968,496

15,447,541,599

(1,111,626,067)

Total

15,573,032,927

(1,111,698,591)

Financial assets that are neither trading nor fair
value basis
- Meet Solely Payments of Principal and Interest
(SPPI)
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TAHOE LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (Continued)

b)

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted (Continued)
HKFRS 16, "Leases"
HKFRS 16 was issued in January 2016. It will result in almost all leases being recognised
on the balance sheet by lessees, as the distinction between operating and finance leases is
removed. Under the new standard, an asset (the right to use the leased item) and a
fmancial liability to pay rentals are recognised. The only exceptions are short-term and
low-value leases.
The Company has reviewed its leasing arrangements in light of the new lease accounting
rules in HKFRS 16. The standard will affect primarily the accounting for the Company's
operating leases. As at 31 December 2018, the Company had non-cancellable operating
lease commitments of HK$78,208,026, see Note 27. Based on the Company's initial
assessment, the adoption of HKFRS 16 will not have material impacts to the financial
statements of the Company. The Company will apply the standard from its mandatory
adoption date of 1 January 2019. The Company intends to apply the simplified transition
approach and will not restate comparative amounts for the year prior to first adoption.
Right-of-use assets for property leases will be measured on transition as if the new rules
had always been applied. All other right-of-use assets will be measured at the amount of
the lease liability on adoption (adjusted for any prepaid or accrued lease expenses).
There are no other new standards, amendments to standards and interpretation that are
not yet effective and that would be expected to have a material impact on the Company in
the current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable future transactions.
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TAHOE LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (Continued)

b)

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted (Continued)
HKFRS 17, " Insurance Contracts"
In May 2017, the HKICP A issued HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts, a comprehensive new
accounting standard for insurance contracts covering recognition and measurement,
presentation and disclosure, which replaces HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts. In contrast to
the requirements in HKFRS 4, which are largely based on grandfathering previous local
accounting policies for measurement purposes, HKFRS 17 provides a comprehensive
model (the general model) for insurance contracts, supplemented by the variable fee
approach for contracts with direct participation features and the premium allocation
approach mainly for short-duration which typically applies to certain non-life insurance
contracts.
The main features of the new accounting model for insurance contracts are as follows:
• The fulfilment cash flows including the expected present value of future cash flows and
explicit risk adjustment, remeasured every reporting period;
• A contractual service margin represents the unearned profitability of the insurance
contracts and is recognised in profit or loss over the coverage period;
• Certain changes in the expected present value of future cash flows are adjusted against
the contractual service margin and thereby recognised in profit or loss over the remaining
coverage period;
• The effect of changes in discount rates will be reported in either profit or loss or other
comprehensive income, determined by an accounting policy choice;
• The recognition of insurance revenue and insurance service expenses in the statement of
comprehensive income based on the concept of services provided during the period;
• Amounts that the policyholder will always receive, regardless of whether an insured
event happens (non-distinct investment components) are not presented in the statement of
comprehensive income, but are recognised directly on the statement of financial position;
• Insurance services results are presented separately from the insurance finance income or
expense;
• Extensive disclosures to provide information on the recognised amounts from insurance
contracts and the nature and extent of risks arising from these contracts. HKFRS 17 is
effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022, with
comparative figures required. Early application is permitted, provided the entity also
applies HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 on or before the date it first applies HKFRS 17.
Retrospective application is required. However, if full retrospective application for a
group of insurance contracts is impracticable, then the entity is required to choose either
the modified retrospective approach or the fair value approach.
The Company is currently assessing the impact of the standard upon adoption.
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TAHOE LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
2

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.2

Translation of foreign currencies
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency of the relevant entity
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the income statement. All foreign exchange gains and losses recognised in the
income statement are presented net in the income statement within the corresponding item.
Foreign exchange gains and losses on other comprehensive income items are presented in the
statement of comprehensive income within the corresponding item.
In the case of changes in the fair value of foreign currency denominated monetary assets

classified as available-for-sale, a distinction is made between translation differences resulting
from changes in amortised cost of the assets and other changes in the carrying amount of the
assets. Translation differences related to changes in the amortised cost are recognised in the
income statement, and those related to changes in the carrying amount, except for impairment,
are recognised in equity. Translation differences on non-monetary items, such as equities held
at fair value through profit or loss are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation
differences on certain other non-monetary items, such as equities classified as available-for-sale
financial assets, are included in the fair value reserve in equity.
2.3

Property and equipment
Property and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged in
the income statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.
Depreciation on assets is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their costs or
revalued amounts to their residual values over their estimated useful lives as follows:
- Furniture & equipment
- Fixture and office decoration
- Computer
- Motor Car

10 years
2 - 4 years
3 - 7 years
5 years

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
balance sheet date. An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.
Gains and· losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying
amount and are recognised within management and other expenses, in the income statement.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.4

Intangible assets

Intangible assets comprise computer software and the exclusive right to distribute life insurance
products through a third party banlc They are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses (refer to Note 2.6(a)).
2.4.1

Computer software
Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire
and bring to use the specific software. These costs are amortised on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful life of five to seven years.
Costs associated with developing or maintaining computer software programmes are recognised
as an expense as incurred. Costs that are directly associated with the development of
identifiable and unique software products controlled by the Company, and that will probably
generate economic benefits exceeding costs beyond one year, are recognised as intangible
assets. Costs include the employee costs incurred as a result of developing software and an
appropriate portion of relevant overheads.

2.4.2

Distribution agreement
The Company has entered into a 15-year exclusive distribution agreement with a third party
bank with effect from 19 June 2017, pursuant to which the Company has agreed to appoint Dab
Sing Bank Limited ("DSB") as its non-exclusive insurance agent for the distribution of life
insurance products in Hong Kong. Amortisation is charged to the income statement according to
the expected consumption pattern of future economic benefits over an estimated useful life of
15 years.

2.5

Financial assets

2.5 .1

Classification
The Company classified its investments into the following categories: financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, and available-for-sale. The classification
depends on the nature of the investments and the purpose for which the investments were
acquired. Management determines the classification of its investments at initial recognition,
except for subsequent reclassification meeting specified defmition of relevant asset
reclassification.
(a)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets or liabilities at fair value through profit or loss comprise two
categories:
•
•

financial assets or liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss upon
initial recognition; and
financial assets or liabilities classified as held for trading.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.5

Financial assets (Continued)

2.5 .1

Classification (Continued)
(a)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)
Management designates fmancial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss if this eliminates a measurement inconsistency or if the related assets and liabilities
are actively managed on a fair value basis, including:
•
•

I
I

Financial assets and liabilities classified as held for trading include financial assets
acquired principally for the purpose of selling them in the near future and those that
form part of a portfolio of financial assets in which there is evidence of short-term
profit taking, as well as derivative assets and liabilities.
(b)

Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. Receivables arising from insurance
contracts are also classified in this category and are reviewed for impairment as part of
the impairment review of loans and receivables.

I
(c)

I
I
I
I

financial assets held to back unit-linked contracts and participating funds; and
other financial assets managed on a fair value basis; consisting of the
Company's equity portfolio and investments held by the Company's
investment funds.

Available-for-sale
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either desigtiated in this
category or not classified in any of the other categories. Available-for-sale investments
are those intended to be held for an indefmite period of time, which may be sold in
response to needs for liquidity or changes in interest rates, exchange rates or equity
prices.

2.5.2

Reclassification
The Company may choose to reclassify a non-derivative trading financial asset out of the held
for trading category if the financial asset is no longer held for the purpose of selling it in the
near term. Financial assets are permitted to be reclassified out of the held for trading category
only in rare circumstances arising from a single event that is unusual and highly unlikely to
recur in the near term.
Reclassifications are made at fair value as of the reclassification date. Fair value becomes the
new cost or amortised cost as applicable, and no reversals of fair value gains or losses before
reclassification date are subsequently made.

I
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.5

Financial assets (Continued)

2.5.3

Recognition and measurement
Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date - the date on which the
Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all fmancial assets
not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss is initially recognised at fair value. Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the fmancial assets have expired or the Company has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and the transfer qualifies for
derecognition.
The bases for the determination of fair value of financial assets are set out in Note 3 (b).
(a)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value of financial assets held for trading
and financial assets designated at fair value at inception are included directly in the
income statement and are reported as part of "Investment income and other income".
Interest income and expense derived from and incurred on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are included under "Investment income and other income".

(b)

Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost less any impairment loss.

(c)

Available-for-sale
Available-for-sale financial assets are initially recognised at fair value which is the cash
given including any transaction costs. They are measured subsequently at fair value
with gains and losses (except for impairment losses and foreign exchange gains and
losses on non-monetary assets classified as available-for-sale) recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity until the financial assets are
derecognised.
Interest is calculated using the effective interest method and recognised in the income
statement. Foreign currency gains and losses on monetary assets classified as availablefor-sale are recognised in the income statement. Dividends on available-for-sale equity
instruments are recognised in the income statement under "Investment income and
other income" when the Company's right to receive payment is established.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.6

Impairment of assets
(a)

Impairment of non-financial assets
Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets
other than goodwill that suffered impairment are reviewed and assessed whether there is
any indication that an impairment loss recognised in prior periods for an asset other
than goodwill may no longer exist or may have decreased at each reporting date. If any
such indication exists, the entity shall estimate the recoverable amount of that asset.

(b)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred on loans and
receivables (other than those relating to insurance contracts covered by the liability
adequacy test), the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have been incurred) discounted at the financial asset's original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised in the income statement. As
a practical expedient, the Company may measure impairment on the basis of an
instrument's fair value using an observable market price.
For the purpose of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial assets are grouped
on the basis of similar credit risk characteristics (i.e., on the basis of the Company's
grading process that considers asset type, industry, geographical location, past-due
status and other relevant factors). Those characteristics are relevant to the estimation of
future cash flows for groups of such assets by being indicative of the issuer's ability to
pay all amounts due under the contractual terms of the debt instrument being evaluated.
If in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised
(such as improved credit rating), the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
by adjusting the allowance account. The amount of the reversal is recognised in the
income statement.
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2.6

Impairment of assets (Continued)
(c)

Financial assets classified as available-for-sales
The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence
that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. In the case of equity
investments classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of the security below its cost is considered in determining whether the assets are
impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the
cumulative loss measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that fmancial asset previously recognised in
profit or loss is removed from equity and recognised in the income statement.
Impairment losses recognised in the income statement on equity instruments are not
reversed through the income statement. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a
debt instrument classified as available-for-sale increases and the increase can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in
profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed through the income statement.

2. 7

Derivative financial instruments
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair value. Fair values are obtained from
quoted market prices in active markets, including recent market transactions, and valuation
techniques, including discounted cash flow models and options pricing models, as appropriate.
All derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is positive and as liabilities when fair value
is negative.
The best evidence of the fair value of a derivative at initial recognition is the transaction price
(i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or received).
Changes in the fair value of any derivative instrument are recognised immediately in the
income statement.

2.8

Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of
financial position only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

2.9

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other shortterm highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.10

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised as a liability in the financial statements in the
period in which they are approved by shareholders.

2.11

Insurance and investment contracts
(i)

Classification
The Company issues contracts that transfer insurance risk or both insurance risk and
financial risk. Insurance contracts are those contracts that transfer significant insurance
risk. Such contract may also transfer financial risk. As a general guideline, the
Company defines as significant insurance risk the possibility of having to pay benefits
on the occurrence of an insured event that are at least 10% more than the benefits
payable if the insured event did not occur. Investment contracts are those contracts that
transfer financial risk with no significant insurance risk.

(ii)

Recognition and measurement
Long-term insurance contracts: non-unit linked

These contracts insure events associated with human life (for example death, or
survival) over a long duration. Premiums are recognised as revenue when they become
payable by the contract holder. Premiums are shown before deduction of commission.
Benefits are recorded as an expense when they are incurred.
Policy benefits comprise maturity benefits and guaranteed cash payment. Maturity
benefits are provided for as and when the payment obligations fall due. Guaranteed
cash payments are provided for as when the payment obligations fall due. Interest on
dividend and guaranteed cash payment is accumulated at interest rates determined
periodically by the Company. Non-guaranteed payments include dividends payable to
insurance policyholders.
Liabilities for claims and surrenders are accounted for on notification in the case of
death, accident and surrenders.
The future insurance liabilities under insurance contracts comprises policyholders'
reserves for future benefits of life insurance contracts which are established in amounts
considered adequate to meet the estimated future obligations of policies in force or paid
up. The liabilities are recalculated at each balance sheet date using the assumptions
established as at the valuation date. They are determined by taking the difference
between the present value of the sums assured and the present value of future net
premiums and are calculated by the appointed actuary on the basis of relevant
assumptions which comply with the requirements of the Hong Kong Insurance
Companies (Determination of Long Term Liabilities) Regulation.
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2.11

Insurance and investment contracts (Continued)
(ii)

Recognition and measurement (Continued)
Long-term insurance contracts: unit-linked

A unit-linked insurance contract is an insurance contract with an embedded derivative
linking payments on the contract to units of investment funds with the consideration
received from the contract holders. This embedded derivative meets the defmition of an
insurance contract and is not therefore accounted for separately from the host insurance
contract. The liability for such contracts, the future insurance liabilities under insurance
contracts, is adjusted for all changes in the fair value of the underlying assets.
Revenue consists of fees deducted for mortality, policy administration and surrender
charges. Interest or changes in the unit prices credited to the account balances of
policyholders and excess benefit claims incurred in the period are charged as expenses
in the income statement.
The future insurance liabilities under insurance contracts include the policyholders'
reserves of the unit-linked funds in respect of the Company's linked long term business.
(iii)

Embedded derivatives
The Company does not separately measure embedded derivatives that meet the
defmition of an insurance contract or options to surrender insurance contracts for a
fixed amount (or an amount based on a fixed amount and an interest rate). All other
embedded derivatives are separated and carried at fair value if they are not closely
related to the host insurance contract and meet the defmition of a derivative.

(iv)

Liability adequacy test
At each balance sheet date, liability adequacy tests are performed to ensure the
adequacy of the contract liabilities. In performing these tests, current best estimates of
future cash flows relating to insurance contracts and claims handling and administration
expenses, as well as investment income from the assets backing such liabilities, are
used.
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2.11

Insurance and investment contracts (Continued)
(v)

Reinsurance contracts held
Contracts entered into by the Company with reinsurers under which the Company is
compensated for losses on one or more contracts issued by the Company and that meet
the classification requirement for insurance contracts are classified as reinsurance
contracts . held. The benefits to which the Company is entitled under its reinsurance
contracts held are recognised as reinsurance assets. These assets consist of short-term
balances due from reinsurers, as well as longer term receivables that are dependent on
the expected claims and benefits arising under the related reinsured insurance contracts.
Amounts recoverable from or due to reinsurers are measured consistently with the
amounts associated with the reinsured insurance contracts and in accordance with the
terms of each reinsurance contract. Reinsurance liabilities are primarily premiums
payable for reinsurance contracts and are recognised as an expense when due.
The Company assesses its reinsurance assets for impairment on an annual basis. If
there is objective evidence that the reinsurance asset is impaired, the Company reduces
the carrying amount of the reinsurance asset to its recoverable amount and recognises
that impairment loss in the income statement. The Company decides whether an
insurance receivable is impaired based on its age and relevant information on the
financial health of the counterparty. If the Company deems an insurance receivable to
be impaired a full and specific provision will be made against the balance in question.

(vi)

Receivables and payables related to insurance contracts
Receivables and payables are recognised when due. These include amounts due to and
from agents, brokers, intermediaries, insurance contract holders and reinsurers.

2.12

Provisions
Provisions for legal claims are recognised when: the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is more likely than not that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required
in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.
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2.13

Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised in the income statement as follows:
(i)

Premiums
Premiums are recognised as revenue when they become due. Reinsurance premiums
are accounted for on the same basis as gross premiums.

(ii)

Interest income
Interest income for fmancial assets is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the
effective interest method. When a receivable is impaired, the Company reduces the
carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash flow
discounted at the original effective interest rate of the instrument and continues
unwinding the discount as interest income.

(iii)

Dividend income
Dividends are recognised in the income statement when the Company's right to receive
payment is established.

(iv)

Measurement
Gains/losses on revaluation of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised in the period of remeasurement.

(v)

Claims and benefits
Claims and benefits are accounted for on notification of claims or when benefits
become payable. Liabilities to policyholders under long-term insurance contracts are
the amount recognised for future claims and benefits of life insurance contracts as
estimated by appointed actuary in compliance with regulatory requirements.
Reinsurance recoveries are accounted for on the same basis as the related claims or
benefits.
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2.14

Leases
Operating lease
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the
lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease.

2.15

Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognised as a liability in the
Company's financial statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the
Company's shareholders.

2.16

Current and deferred income tax
The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the
income statement, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity. In
this case, the tax is recognised in equity.
The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation.
It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the
tax authorities.
Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial
statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the end of reporting period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.
Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised. The tax
effects of income tax losses available for carry forward are recognised as an asset when it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which these losses can be utilised.
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Critical accounting estimates, and judgements in applying accounting policies
The Company makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year. Estimates and judgements are periodically evaluated
and based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

(a)

Estimate of future benefit payments and premiums arising from long-term insurance
contracts
The Company bases these estimates on standard industry mortality tables that reflect recent
historical mortality experience with margin, adjusted where appropriate to reflect the
Company's own experience. The estimated number of deaths determines the value of the
benefit payments and the value of the valuation premiums. A main source of uncertainty is that
epidemics such as AIDS, SARS and wide ranging lifestyle changes, such as in eating, smoking
and exercise habits, could result in future mortality being significantly worse than in the past for
the age groups in which the Company has significant exposure to mortality risk offset by
continuing improvements in medical care and social conditions, and reinsurance arrangements.
For contracts without fixed terms, the Company will be able to increase mortality risk charges
in future years in line with emerging mortality experience.
Estimate of critical illness related morbidity based on industry data with margin, adjusted where
appropriate to reflect the Company's own experience. The uncertainty is greater than mortality
due to a smaller pool of insured, shorter history of the coverage, medical advances and change
in treatment as well as wide-ranging lifestyle changes, such as in eating, smoking and exercise
habits.
The Company reserves the right to increase the premium rates in future years for all contracts
providing such coverage during the premium term.
For long-term insurance contracts, assumptions compliant with regulatory requirement are used
to determine the liabilities. These assumptions are reviewed at least annually to ensure the
assumptions used still meet regulatory requirements and the liabilities remain adequate.

(b)
J

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
__!'or _financ~al ~ssets traded in active ~arkets, the determination _of fair value is based on quoted
market prices, dealer price quotations or broker quotes from Bloomberg and Reuters. -Thequoted market price used for financial assets held by the Company is the current bid price.
A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and
regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or
regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions
on an arm's length basis. If the above criteria are not met, the market is regarded as being
inactive. Indications that a market is inactive are when there is a wide bid-offer spread or
significant increase in bid-offer spread or there are few recent transactions.
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Critical accounting estimates, and judgements in applying accounting policies (Continued)

(b)

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

l

In the normal course of business, the Company invests in certain short to long term investment
grade bonds and investment funds. These investments are classified in the financial statements
under the "fair value through profit or loss" and "available-for-sale" category. As these
instruments are traded over-the-counter and there is no active secondary market, the
management has assessed their fair values with reference to prices quoted by valuations
received from custodians.

1
(c)

'l
l

Fair value hierarchy
HKFRS 7 specifies a hierarchy of valuation techniques based on whether the inputs to those
valuation techniques are observable or unobservable. Observable inputs reflect market data
obtained from independent sources; unobservable inputs reflect the Company's market
assumptions. These two types of inputs have created the following fair value hierarchy:
Level
1

Descriptions
Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. This
level includes listed equity securities and debt instruments on exchange (for
example, Hong Kong Stock Exchange, New York Stock Exchange) and exchanges
traded derivatives like futures.

2

Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices). This level includes the majority of the over-the-counter derivative
contracts, artd issued structured debt. The sources of input parameters include
LIBOR yield curve, or Bloomberg and Reuters for counterparty credit risk.

3

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs). This level includes equity investments and debt instruments
with significant unobservable components.

The hierarchy requires the use of observable market data when available. The Company
considers relevant and observable market prices in its valuations where possible.

1
1

.J

'

J
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Critical accounting estimates, and judgements in applying accounting policies (Continued)

(c)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value:
Levell
HK$

r

Level2
HK$

Level3
HK$

Total
HK$

At 31 December 2018
Descriptions

l

Trading securities
Equity securities

71,709,570

71,709,570

J

Financial assets designated at
fair value through profit or loss
Debt securities
Equity securities
Investment funds

3,540,380,854
302,246,060

Derivative financial instruments
Available-for-sale financial
assets
Equity securities
Total fmancial assets measured
at fair value

1,0I5,736,I57

I0,589, 178,528
3,540,380,854
I,3I7,982,217

23,646,698

23,646,698

10,589,178,528

30,135,060

30,135,060

II !628 1561 ,383

15,573,032,927

Derivative fmancial instruments

16,760,448

16,760,448

Total fmancialliabilities
measured at fair value

I6 760,448

16 760,448

3,944,47I !544

\ l

1
J
1

.J
-35-

1
1
1j

TAHOE LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3

Critical accounting estimates, and judgements in applying accounting policies (Continued)

(c)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

1

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value:
Levell
HK$

1

Level2
HK$

Level3
HK$

Total
HK$

At 31 December 2017
Descriptions

1

Trading securities
Equity securities
Financial assets designated at
fair value through profit or loss
Debt securities
Equity securities
Investment funds

'1
I

'

I

l

158,457,606

8,138,301,124
3,520,513,137
207,739,751

Derivative financial instruments
Available-for-sale financial
assets
Equity securities
Investment funds
Total fmancial assets measured
at fair value

(d)

J

158,457,606

1,366,004,687

8,138,301,124
3,520,513,137
1,573,744,438

25,489,461

25,489,461

158,868,745
63,963,085

158,868,745
63,963,085

9,529, 795,272

13,639,337,596

Derivative financial instruments

7,255,220

7,255,220

Total fmancialliabilities
measured at fair value

7,255,220

7 255,220

4,109,542,324

Impairment assessment on available-for-sale equity securities

The Company has conducted an assessment of its available-for-sale securities as of the end of
the year of the Company. Assessment is made in determining whether or not a decline in fair
value of an available-for-sale financial investment below its original cost is of such a nature as
to constitute impairment, and thus whether an impairment loss needs to be recognised.

J
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Critical accounting estimates, and judgements in applying accounting policies (Continued)

(e)

Estimation of impairment on intangible assets
At each balance sheet date, the Company reviews internal and external sources of information
to identify indications that intangible asset may be impaired. Management judgment is required
in the assessment of impairment on intangible asset, particularly as to whether: (1) an event has
occurred that may affect its value; (2) the carrying value of the asset can be supported by the net
present value of projected future cash flows generated from the asset; (3) the cash flows are
discounted using an appropriate rate. An impairment loss on the intangible asset is established
when there is objective evidence that the carrying amount of the intangible asset exceeds its
recoverable amount.
The carrying value of the 15-year exclusive distribution agreement effective from 19 June 2017
is calculated based on value expected to be generated from future new business. The carrying
value will be amortised throughout the contract term. The value from future new business is
calculated based on a combination of indicators which include projected value of new business
(VNB) through the 15-year term of the exclusive distribution agreement, taking into account
recent production mix, business strategy and market trends. The economic and operating
assumptions used to calculate the value of new business, including risk discount rate, VNB
margin and growth rate of annualised premium equivalent (APE), would be subject to regular
review by management for their relevance, reasonableness and appropriateness, and certain
assumptions used would be reviewed by an external actuary. Changes in key assumptions and
cash flow projections used in the calculation of VNB may result in impairment charges in the
future, which could be material. In 2018, the Company has concluded there was no further
impairment charge would be required (2017: impairment charge ofHK$683,235,413) related to
the intangible asset for the 15-year exclusive distribution agreement.

1

,]
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Management of insurance and financial risk

(a)

Frequency and severity of claims

1

For contracts where death is the insured risk, the most significant factors that could increase the
overall frequency of claims are epidemics or wide spread changes in lifestyle, resulting in earlier
or more claims than expected.

1

For contracts with fixed and guaranteed benefits and fixed future premiums, there are no
mitigating terms and conditions that reduce the insurance risk accepted. For contracts with
discretionary participating features, the participating nature of these contracts results in a
significant portion of the insurance and financial risks being shared with the insured party.

'1

The Company charges for mortality risk on a monthly basis for all insurance contracts without a
fixed term. It has the right to alter these charges based on its mortality experience and hence
minimise its exposure to mortality risk. Delays in implementing increases in charges, and market
or regulatory restraints over the extent of the increases may reduce its mitigating effect.
The Company manages these risks through its underwriting strategy and reinsurance
arrangements.
The Company's underwriting strategy seeks diversity to ensure a balanced portfolio and is based
on a portfolio of similar risks over a number of years and, as such, it is believed that this reduces
the variability of the outcome. Premium pricing is set at an appropriate level that corresponds
with the underlying exposure of the risks underwritten. The Company has a company-wide
retention limit on any single life insured. The Company reinsures the excess of the insured
benefit over the limit for standard risks (from a medical point of view) under an excess of loss
reinsurance treaty arrangement and on certain policies, reinsures all the mortality risks.

..
' J

Within the insurance process, concentrations of risk may arise where a particular event or series
of events could impact heavily upon the Company's liabilities. Such concentrations may arise
from a single insurance contract or through a small number of related contracts, and relate to
circumstances where significant liabilities could arise.
The Company is subject to concentration risk arising from accidents or epidemics on policies
taken out by its policyholders. Therefore, to cover the risk, catastrophe reinsurance arrangements
have been made by the Company.
(b)

Sources of uncertainty in the estimate of future benefit payments and premium receipts
Uncertainty in the estimation of future benefit payments and premium receipts for long-term
insurance contracts arises from the unpredictability of long-term changes in overall levels of
mortality and the variability in contract holder behaviour .

. l

The Company uses relevant industry tables of standard mortality and adjust these according to
the type of contract being written. An investigation into the actual experience of the Company is
carried out annually. Realistic estimates of future mortality are made based on standard industry
tables adjusted for the Company's overall experience.

J
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Management of insurance and financial risk (Continued)

(c)

Financial risk
The Company is exposed to financial risk through its fmancial assets, financial liabilities and
insurance liabilities (investment contracts, if applicable, and borrowing). In particular, the key
financial risk is that the proceeds from its financial assets are not sufficient to fund the
obligations arising from its insurance contracts. The most important components of this fmancial
risk are interest rate risk, equity price risk, currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and insurance
risk.
These risks include open positions in interest rate, currency and equity products, all of which are
exposed to general and specific market movements. The risks that the Company primarily faces
due to the nature of its investments and liabilities are interest rate risk and equity price risk.
The Company manages these positions within an asset liability management (ALM) framework
that has been developed to achieve long-term investment returns in excess of its obligations under
insurance contracts. The principal technique of the Company's ALM is to match assets to the
liabilities arising from insurance and other contracts by reference to the type of benefits payable
to contract holders. For each distinct category of liability, a separate portfolio of assets is
maintained. The Company has established a policy on market risk which sets out the principles
that the business are expected to adopt in respect of management of the key market risks to which
the Company is exposed. The Company monitors adherence to this market risk policy through the
Investment Committee.
(i)

Interest rate risk and equity price risk
Interest rate risk has a materially different impact across the assets and liabilities. Except
for cash and bank balances, all interest bearing financial assets are carried at fair value.
The Company monitors interest rate risk by calculating the mean duration of the
investment portfolio, the liabilities issued and insurance liabilities. Any gap between the
mean durations of the assets and the liabilities is reduced by means of buying and selling
fixed interest securities of appropriate durations.
2018
Impact on
Impact on
profit
total equity

2017
Impact on
Impact on
profit
total equity

HK$'000

HK$'000

HK$'000

HK$'000

+I 0 basis points parallel shift in yield curves

86,566

86,566

96,208

96,208

-10 basis points parallel shift in yield curves

(93,511)

(93,511)

(113,709)

(113,709)

•

l

.l
L

Resilience tests and dynamic solvency tests are conducted and reviewed by the appointed
actuary at least annually. The results show that the Company does not need to hold
resilience reserves and the statutory solvency requirements can be met years.
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Management of insurance and financial risk (Continued)

(c)

Financial risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk and equity price risk (Continued)
Equity price risk

rl
J

2018
Impact on
Impact on
profit
total equity

2017
Impact on
Impact on
profit
total equity

HK$' 000

HK$' 000

HK$' 000

HK$' 000

10 per cent increase in equity prices

333,034

333,034

351,317

351,317

10 per cent decrease in equity prices

(330,666)

(330,666)

(347,263)

(347,263)

Resilience tests and dynamic solvency tests are conducted and reviewed by the appointed
actuary at least annually. The results show that the Company does not need to hold
resilience reserves and the statutory solvency requirements can be met over the projected
years.
(ii)

Credit risk
The credit risk on financial assets comprising debts and cash and cash equivalents, of the
Company is generally the carrying amount, which is net of any provisions. Net exposure
limits are set for each counterparty or group of counterparties in relation to investments,
cash deposits and forward foreign exchange exposures. Credit risk exposures are
calculated regularly and compared . with authorised credit limits before further
transactions are undertaken with each counterparty.
To manage credit risk, the Company transacts with counterparties under strict guidelines
covering the limits and terms and does not expect such counterparties with strong credit
ratings to fail to meet their obligations.

1

J
_]

1
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Management of insurance and financial risk (Continued)

(c)

Financial risk (Continued)

(ii)

Credit risk (Continued)
The following tables provide information regarding the aggregate credit risk exposure
and credit rating (based mainly on S&P's rating) of debt securities and bank balances at
the balance sheet date.

'l
l

.f

As at 31 December 2018
Company Total

AAA

HK$

Debt securities
Bank balances

941 ,349,969

AA-to AA+
1,585,091 ,879
447,518,215

As at 31 December 2017
Company Total

!

t

HK$

Debt securities
Bank balances

Credit Ratin
Rated but
A-to A+
Below A4,934,298,620
1,305,036,114

2,943,865,001
993 ,793,247

Unrated

Total

184,573,059

10,589,178,528
2,746,347,576

CreditRatin

AAA
680,465,500

AA-toAA+

A-to A+

Rated but
Below A-

1,351,699,881
744,425,724

4,684,385,177
1,838,340,243

1,290, 166,706
308,872,079

Unrated
131 ,583,860

Total
8,138,301,124
2,891 ,638,046

The carrying amount in respect of relevant asset classes in the statement of fmancial
position represents the maximum amount of credit exposure.
Debt securities financial assets as at the balance sheet dates are neither past due nor
impaired.
The Company only use reinsurers with credit rating of A or above and the other assets are
unrated.

J
j
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Management of insurance and financial risk (Continued)

(c)

Financial risk (Continued)
(iii)

Liquidity risk
The Company is exposed to daily calls on its available cash resources mainly from
claims arising from benefit payments. Liquidity risk is the risk that cash may not be
available to pay obligations when due at a reasonable cost. The Company manages this
risk by monitoring daily and weekly projected and actual cash flows by ensuring that a
reasonable amount of financial assets are kept in liquid instruments at all times.

l
.,

The following tables analyse the contractual I expected timing of cash inflows
(outflows):
As at 31 December 20 18

Contractual cash flows (undiscounted)
Over 5 years
Within 1 year
1-5 years

Undated
Amounts due to a
fellow subsidiary

, I

Total

(47,294,854)

(47,294,854)

Liabilities under
insurance contracts
- future insurance
liabilities
- (789,174,590) (5,940,878,381) (34,452,947,173) (41,183,000,144)
-insurance creditors (3,609,099,077) (38,934,106)
- (3,648,033,183)
Other payables

(93, 149,494) (710,548,3 10)

(264,000,000)

(158,400,000)

(1,226,097,804)

320,516,483
- (309,598,391)

62,517,566
( 13,578,944)

86,556,191
(12,447,019)

469,590,240
(335,624,354)

Derivative financial
instruments to be
settled on a gross
basis
Total inflow
Total outflow

As at 31 December 20 I 7
Contractual cash flows (undiscounted)
Over 5 years
Within I year
1-5 years

Undated
Amounts due to a
fellow subsidiary

.I

(87,969,630)

(87,969,630)

Liabilities under
insurance contracts
- future insurance
liabilities
-insurance creditors (2,510,905,613)

(787,825,983) (2,864,200,271) (33,235,381,707) (36,887,407,961)
- (2,510,905,613)

Other payables

J

Total

Derivative financial
instruments to be
settled on a gross
basis
Total inflow
Total outflow

(145,299, 195)

(12,430,578)

(171 ,644,258)

(31 0,969, 181)

(640,343,212)

-

304,697,555
(301,913,811)

32,042,303
(19,418,796)

14,769,714
(18,366,705)

351,509,572
(339,699,312)
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Management of insurance and financial risk (Continued)

(c)

Financial risk (Continued)

1

(iv)

Liabilities are denominated in two main currencies, United States dollar and Hong Kong
dollar which amount to HK$8,456,551,273 (2017: HK$8,210,568,633) and
HK$10,271,430,590 (2017: HK$4,617,581,054) respectively. The Company adopts a
policy of predominately matching the liabilities with assets in the same currency,
effectively reducing the exposure to foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations. The net
foreign currency exposure is kept to a level acceptable by management by using currency
derivatives. As at 31 December 2018, the Company had less than 5% of total investments
denominated in currencies other than United States dollar and Hong Kong dollar. The
Company views the currency mismatch risk is minimal as long as the Hong Kong dollar is
pegged to the United States dollar.

f'J
!

Currency risk

1

I

r)
(d)

Capital management
The Company's objectives when managing capital are:
To comply with the capital requirements set by the regulators;
To safeguard the Company's ability to continue its business as a going concern;
To maximize returns to shareholders and optimize the benefits to other stakeholders; and
To maintain a strong capital base to support the development of its business.
The local insurance regulator specifies the minimum amount and type of capital that must be held
by an insurance company relative to their insurance liabilities. The minimum required capital
must be maintained at all times throughout the year. The Company has embedded in its ALM
framework the necessary tests to ensure continuous and full compliance with such regulations.
The required margin of solvency for the Company is determined by the Company's appointed
actuary in accordance with the Hong Kong Insurance (Margin of Solvency) Rules. In addition, a
dynamic solvency test is also required by the Insurance Authority of Hong Kong to identify the
solvency position of the Company on a going concern basis and plausible threats to maintaining a
satisfactory financial condition.
To be consistent with the regulatory requirement, the Company also manages the net asset value
as the capital which amounts to HK$3,246,172,278 as of 31 December 2018 (2017:
HK$3,765,472,804).

J

I
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Investment (loss)/income and other income
2018
HK$

2017
HK$

412,054,940
134,311,754

336,985,345

(1,109,657,571)
111,864,215

1,211,037,635
606,135

(161,155,386)
(5,968,009)

17,956,360
53,865,565
(6,491,258)

(618,550,057)

1,759,151,640

5,968,352
5,391,033

70,470,973
4,555,593

Investment (loss)/income and other income

(607,190,672)

1,834, 178,206

Listed investment income
Unlisted investment income

(571,315,892)
(47,234,165)

1,442,875,681

Investment (loss)/income

(618,550,057)

1,759,151,640

2018
HK$

2017
HK$

4,971,287
11,598,656
56,394,135

644,780
11,130,429
23,943,697

1,705,000
1,989,722
5,676,441

1,550,000
1,752,521
12,799,253
17,399,627
418,321,386

r•
Interest income
Dividend income
Rental income
Net (loss)/gain on revaluation of trading securities and fmancia1
assets designated at fair value through profit or loss and derivatives
Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale fmancial assets
Net (loss)/gain on disposal of trading securities and fmancial assets
designated at fair value through profit or loss and derivatives
Discounting of other payables at initial recognition
Investment handling charges and other fees

'1

l

Investment (loss) I income
Net exchange gain
Miscellaneous income

6

1

136,669,933
8,521,925

316,275,959

Management and other expenses

Depreciation (Note 9)
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 10)
Amortisation of distribution agreement (Note 10)
Auditor's remuneration
-Statutory audit
-Other services
Professional fees
Management fee paid to a fellow subsidiary (Note 26)
Reimbursement of expenses to a fellow subsidiary (Note 26)
Service Fee paid to a fellow subsidiary (Note 26)
Commissions recoverable from reinsurers
Advertising and promotion expenses
Write-off of property and equipment
Other operating expenses

516,620,586
(23,815,965)
40,747,625
169,135
44,070,408

Total

660,127,030

(23,668,317)
63,399,063
45,238,532

J

1

J
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nI

Taxation
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2017: 16.5%) on the estimated
assessable profit for the year. The assessable profit for the year has been arrived at using the
deemed 5% of premiums method based on net premium income.

'1

l

Current income tax:
Hong Kong profits tax

Long term
business
2018
HK$

Company
total
2018
HK$

Long term
business
2017
HK$

Company
total
2017
HK$

23,722,230

23,681,957

13,407,982

13,407,982

The taxation on the Company's loss before taxation differs from the theoretical amount that
would arise using the taxation rate of Hong Kong as follows:

I

l

l

Loss before taxation

1

Calculated at tax rate of 16.5% (2017: 16.5%)
Different tax treatment of the results of the life
insurance business

I

2018
HK$

2017
HK$

(432,221,510)

(698,811,292)

(71,316,549)

(115,303,863)

94,998,506
23,681,957

128,711,845
13,407,982

As at 31 December 2018, the Company has no estimated accumulated tax losses (20 17: Nil)
which are available for set-off against future assessable profit.
. I

J

'l
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Directors' emoluments

Fees
Share-based compensation:
Exercised I cancellation
Charge
Other emoluments

2018
HK$

2017
HK$

3,234,451

760,137

2,787,380
4,952,823

Aggregate emoluments of the three highest paid directors

3,234,451

8,500,340

2,600,000

4,952,823

' 1I
For the year ended 31 December 20 18

'l

In addition to the above, there was a total amount of HK$7,392,835 in relation to the remuneration of
certain directors of the Company who have provided services to the Company through the General Agency
Agreement and the addendums to General Agency Agreement entered into with a fellow subsidiary of the
Company, which has been included in the expenses charged to the Company pursuant to the above
agreement and addendums (Note 26).
For the year ended 31 December 2017
The directors' emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2017 shown above include HK$4,952,823
which were paid by the Company before 19 June 2017, date of Tahoe Life Insurance Company Limited
acquired by Tahoe Investment Group Company Limited.
Share-based compensation is the cost of the share options granted by the Company's former holding
company, Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited ("DSFH"), to the former director/directors of the
Company. DSFH issued to certain directors and employees of its subsidiaries share options on terms that
allow DSFH the choice of making cash payments, determined based on the intrinsic value of each share
option, instead of allotting newly issued shares to the directors or employees at the date of exercise. DSFH
had adopted the cash settlement practice in respect of the existing share options issued. The above cost is
the charge to the Company's income statement in respect of the option granted to the Company's former
directors and in respect of the value of the share options settled for the period from 1 January 2017 to 18
June2017.
During the period from 1 January 2017 to 18 June 2017 (the date of transfer of the ownership of the
Company), no options were granted to the former directors of the Company and 385,935 share options
(previously granted to a former director) were exercised and cancelled by DSFH and cash compensation
was made to that former director of the Company, and 28,053 share options that were vested but not
exercisable were transferred to Dah Sing Insurance Company (1976) Limited ("DSI (1976)"), a former
fellow subsidiary of the Company, and a cash payment was made to DSI (1976).
Subsequent to the change of ownership on 19 June 2017, the Company no longer participates in any DSFH
or DSBG share option schemes.

J

The Company and its new holding companies since 19 June 2017 have not put in place any share option
schemes.
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Property and equipment
Property and equipment comprise computer hardware, furniture, office equipment and motor car.

T'
Computer
Hardware
HK$

f

,.1

Cost
At I January
Additions
Write-off

6,499,036
30,3I3,251
(17,500)

4,585,698
2,342,225
(I7,500)

Furniture
and Office
Equipment
HK$
2,987,846
1,708,672

20I8
Fixture and
Office
Decoration
HK$

Motor
Car
HK$

Total
HK$

765,000

{2,6I9,6242

337,242
I9,895,330
(178,I60)

-

I0,589,I24
5I,9I7,253
(2,8I5,284)

2,553,I24
151,440
(2,522,502)

108,150
2,324,622
(106,I47)

76,500
I53,000
-

7,323,472
4,971,287
(2,646,I49)

At 3I December

'

'

Accumulated impairment I depreciation
At I January
Charge for the year (Notes 6 & 25)
Write-off
At 3I December
Net book value
At 31 December

Cost
At 1 January
Additions
At 31 December

.J

29,884,364

I,894,832

17,727,787

535,500

50,042,483

Computer
Hardware
HK$

Furniture
and Office
Equipment
HK$

20I7
Fixture and
Office
Decoration
HK$

Motor
Car
HK$

Total
HK$

4,885,105
1,6I3,931

2,589,958
397,888

120,000
2I7,242

765,000

7,595,063
2,994,061

-----~~?9,036

---~987!_~~~---------l~Zc242___1§~ .o~~____!_Q_,_?_~.112~--

Accumulated impairment I depreciation
At 1 January
Charge for the year (Notes 6 & 25)

4,184,865
400,833

2,420,827
I32,297

At 31 December

4,585,698

2,553,124 ___ _!28,!1Q__I_6,50~ _ _7!_~23,472

Net book value
At 31 December

1,913,338
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434,722

73,000
35,150

229,092

76,500

688,500

6,678,692
644,780

3,265,652
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1

Intangible assets
Intangible assets comprise computer software and the exclusive right to distribute life insurance
products through DSB for fifteen years starting from 19 June 2017, on which impairment reviews
are undertaken whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts have been determined based on value-in-use
calculations or fair value less costs to sell. These calculations require the use of judgments and
estimates.
Computer
Software
HK$

2018
Distribution
Agreement
HK$

Total
HK$

Cost
At 1 January
Additions

75,813,257
11,674,423

2,500,000,000

2,575,813,257
11,674,423

52,740,719
11,598,656

707,179,110
56,394,135

759,919,829
67,992,791

23,148,305

1,736,426,755

1,759,575,060

Computer
Software
HK$

2017
Distribution
Agreement
HK$

At 31 December

.1

Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January
Amortisation charge (Notes 6 & 25)
At 31 December
Net book value
At 31 December

' I

Cost
At 1 January
Additions

Total
HK$

71,341,367
4,471,890

2,500,000,000

71,341,367
2,504,4 71,890

41,610,290
11 ,130,429

23,943 ,697

41,610,290
35,074,126

683,235,413

683,235,413

I, 792,820,890

1,815,893,428

At 31 December
Accumulated impairment I amortisation
At 1 January
Amortisation charge (Notes 6 & 25)
Impairment charge (Note 25)
At 31 December
Net book value
At 31 December

23,072,538

J
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Trading securities and financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss

'

Long term

Company

Long term

business

total

business

total

2018

2018

2017

2017

HK$

HK$

HK$

HK$

Listed equity shares

71,709,570

71,709,570

158,457,606

158,457,606

Total

71,709,570

71,709,570

158,457,606

158,457,606

issued by overseas government bodies

1,078,374,257

l ,078,3 74,257

702,096,620

702,096,620

Other listed

5,466,223,922

5,615,525,995

6,433,401,834

6,433,401,834

Other unlisted

1,798,341,054

1,798,341,054

497,445,642

497,445,642

rl

'1

Company

Trading securities:

1
1

Financial assets designated at fair value
through profit or loss:

J

Debt securities
Fixed interest securities

I

l

Variable interest securities

I

issued by overseas government bodies
Other listed
Other unlisted

ll6,931,060

116,931,060

1,575,107

1,575,107

1,300,527,164

1,391 ,755,821

372,237,805

372,237,805

510,057,226

588,250,341

131,544,116

131,544,116

. 10,22_~454,683_____! 0,589,1 ~t528 --~_.p8,3~-~t!~---~}_?_!.~Q_!Bj__
Other investments
Listed equity shares

3,202,323,530

3,540,380,854

3,174,913,229

3,520,513,137

Listed investment funds

302,246,060

302,246,060

207,739,751

207,739,751

Unlisted investment funds

845,755,655

1,015,736,157

1,109,616,755

1,366,004,687

-----~.?l~Qd25,245 ____ i&~-~l.~?...Q?.!_______iti2.~_!.~&2a?l~------~!91~.?-~-~1?2?__

12

Total

14,620,779,928

15,447,541,599

12,630,570,859

13,232,558,699

Total trading securities and financial assets
designated at fair value through profit or
loss

14,692,489,498

15,519,251, 169

12,789,028,465

13,391,016,305

Long term

Company

Long term

Company

business

total

business

total

2018

2018

2017

2017

HK$

HK$

HK$

HK$

30,135,060

30,135,060

158,868,745

158,868,745

63 963,085

63 963 085

222,831,830

222,831,830

Available-for-sale financial assets

Listed equity shares
Unlisted investment funds

30,135,060

J
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Derivative financial instruments
The notional principal amounts of outstanding derivatives contracts and their fair values as of
31 December 2018 were as follows:

I

l

Notional amount
HK$
Long-term business and Company total
a) Foreign exchange derivatives
-Forward and futures
b) Interest rate derivatives
- Interest rate futures
- Interest rate swaps
c) Credit derivatives
- Credit default swaps

514,939,779

Fair value
2018
Assets
HK$

4,581,566

7,651,198

17,455,080

467,811
6,640,898

17,455,080

7,108,709

1,610,052

2,000,541

23,646,698

16,760,448

294,884,125
903,212,745

304,167,840

Liabilities
HK$

The notional principal amounts of outstanding derivatives contracts and their fair values as of
31 December 2017 were as follows:

Notional amount
HK$
Long-term business and Company total
a) Foreign exchange derivatives
-Forward and futures
-Foreign exchange option
b) Interest rate derivatives
- Interest rate swaps
- Interest rate options
c) Credit derivatives
- Credit default swaps

670,641,251
5,461,861

788,934,759
544,295,540

339,070,996

-50-

Fair value
2017
Assets
HK$

Liabilities
HK$

1,983,084

3,747,808
15,390

1,983,084

3,763,198

16,247,045
738,764

1,204,954
1,151,309

16,985,809

2,356,263

6,520,568

1,135,759

25,489,461

7,255,220

TAHOE LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
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Reinsurance assets and insurance debtors
2018
HK$

2017
HK$

115,365,070
3,407,392
59,424,510

94,384,894
3,058,185
58,934,403

163,853,728
116,976,092
1,174,355,782

231,232,781
72,594,205
1,140,818,134

1,633,382,574

1,601,022,602

459,026,792
1,174,355,782
1,633,382,574

460,204,468
1,140,818,134
1,601,022,602

Long-term business and Company total

Direct business
Insurance policy loans (note (a))
Interest receivables on policy loans
Insurance premiums receivable
Reinsurance contracts
- premium deposit and advance premium
- claims and others
-future insurance liabilities (Note 18)

"}

1

Current portion
Non-current portion

'1

Notes:
(a) Policy loans are secured by insurance contracts.

15

Other receivables and prepayments

Settlement accounts
Accrued investment income
Deposits
Prepayments
Others

Long term
business
2018
HK$

Company
total
2018
HK$

Long term
business
2017
HK$

Company
total
2017
HK$

333,115,077
99,252,942
11,297,752
11,425,313
541,670

341,531,517
112,342,362
11,297,752
11,425,313
541,670

18,433,369
75,415,223
95,082
6,978,326
1,756,605

18,433,369
76,721,442
95,082
6,978,326
1,756,605

455,632,754

477,138,614

102,678,605

103,984,824

J

.J

All amounts are generally either expected to be recovered within 12 months after the end of the
reporting period or repayable on demand .

}

I
_j
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l

Bank balances

Fixed term deposits
Current and savings
accounts

17

Long term
business
2018
HK$

Company
total
2018
HK$

Long term
business
2017
HK$

Company
total
2017
HK$

1,094,410,004

1,893,716,443

354,783,959

1,245,731,582

824,587,178

852,631,133

1,105,151,346

1,645,906,464

1,918,997' 182

2,746,347,576

1,459,935,305

2,891,638,046

Amounts due from I (to) fellow subsidiaries and the intermediate holding company
The amounts due from I (to) fellow subsidiaries and the intermediate holding company are
unsecured, current, interest free, have no fixed terms for repayment.

1
J
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Future insurance liabilities under insurance contracts
2018
HK$

2017
HK$

14,147,531,194
(1,174,355,782)

13,097,985,650
(1,140,818,134)

12,973,175,412

11,957,167,516

375,348,660

454,437,949

2018
HK$

2017
HK$

At beginning of year
Valuation premium
Liabilities released for payments on death and other
terminations in the year
Accretion of interest
Change in valuation interest rate assumption and
other basis changes
Net exchange differences
Change in special dividend reserve
Net change in reinsurance reserve
Change in unit-linked reserve
Other movements*

11,957,167,516
2,892,588, 781

10,119,658,920
1,691,808,238

(718,378,476)
274,792,148

(825, 778,920)
257,997,267

(851,257,533)
(3,307,798)
21,627,912
(33,537,647)
(79,089,289)
( 487,430,202)

1,079,036,113
34,247,295
71,174,278
(93,044,059)
88,428,267
(466,359,883)

At end of year

12,973,175,412

11,957,167,516

Long-term business
Long term insurance contracts, non-current
-Gross
-Reinsurance (Note 14)

Includes unit-linked fund value

l

1

r

l

*Other movements include other policy movements (e.g. coupon payments) and Zillmer adjustment.
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Assumptions and sensitivity of long-term insurance contracts
Estimates are made in calculating the future insurance liabilities under insurance contracts.
Key assumptions are summarised below:
Mortality:
An appropriate table of standard mortality is chosen with adjustment for the Company's
own experience with appropriate margins.

l

Valuation interest rates:
The valuation interest rates as at 31 December 2018 for major products (namely whole
life products which constitute approximately 82% of total net insurance liabilities range
from2.50% to 3.45% (2017: 2.26% to 3.16%) whereas for all other products (mainly
short-term products) the valuation interest rates range from 1.53% to 4.88% (2017:
1.39% to 3.00%) depending on type of plans and denominated currencies, and vary with
the changes in the appropriate risk free rates and the portfolio yields of their backing
assets.

1

I

Change in assumption
Valuation interest rates in 2018 changed by -1.47% to +0.55% (2017:-0.50% to +0.19%)
depending on the types of plans and currency of denomination from 31 December 2017 to 31
December 2018. The valuation interest rates are changed because of changes in market interest
rates and portfolio yield of the backing assets*.
The overall impact from the change in valuation interest rates on the future insurance liabilities
balance and the statutory profit under insurance contracts as at 31 December 2018 is a
HK$638,089,508 decrease in liabilities and HK$638,089,508 increase in profit respectively
(2017: HK$884,437,104 increase in liabilities and HK$884,437,104 reduction in profit
respectively).

*

Reserving interest rates are different for different product lines and denominated currencies, and are
detennined per regulation based on the current market spot and the past three years average of the reserving
reference rates, as well as the portfolio yields of their backing assets

Sensitivity analysis

J
The following table represents the sensitivity of value of future insurance liabilities under
insurance contracts to movements in the key assumptions used in the estimation of future
insurance liabilities under insurance contracts.
2018

J
I

J

Worsening of mortality
Decrease in valuation
interest rates

2017

Change in
net profit

Change in
future
insurance
liabilities

Change in net
profit

(HK$'000)

(HK$'000)

(HK$'000)

(HK$'000)

1.0%

+10,236

-10,236

+9,303

-9,303

0.1%

+266,284

-266,284

+281,107

-281,107

Change in
variable

j

Change in
future
insurance
liabilities

1
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Assumptions and sensitivity oflong-term insurance contracts (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)
The above analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions
constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and change in some of the assumptions may be
correlated - for example, change in interest rate and change in market values; change in lapses
and future mortality.

20

Insurance creditors under insurance contracts
2018
HK$

2017
HK$

1,322, 732,535
1,381,312,963
793,387,019
111,666,560

171,345,759
1,187,023,966
726,840,791
113,157,601

3,609,099,077

2,198,368,117

38,934,106

312,537,496

3,648,033,183

2,510,905,613

Long-term business and Company total
Direct business:
Premium deposit and advance premium
Guaranteed cash payments
Dividends to policyholders
Claims, maturity benefits and claim expenses

Reinsurance contracts ceded

l

Insurance creditors under insurance contracts are current liabilities.
Liabilities for unpaid guaranteed cash payments and dividends are repayable to policyholders on
demand and accrue interest based on interest rates determined at the discretion of the Company.

1
21

Other payables

Settlement account
Distribution agreement
Others

.J
J

Current
Non-current

Long term
business
2018
HK$

Company
total
2018
HK$

Long term
business
2017
HK$

Company
total
2017
HK$

693,870,786

57,909,315

50,254,854

700,642,949
426,720,992
50,254,854

49,599,042

62,547,440
474,134,435
49,795,777

744,125,640

1,177,618,795

107,508,357

586,477,652

744,125,640

798,311,247
379,307,548

107,508,357

159,756,660
426,720,992

744,125,640

1,177,618,795

107,508,357

586,477,652

I

1
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J

!

.,

Current income tax liabilities
Current income tax liabilities comprise of taxation payable of HK$10,489,250 as at 31
December 2018 (2017: current income tax liabilities comprise of taxation payable of
HK$273,424) and is attributable to the long term business.

23

Share capital
Long-term business and Company total
Authorised, issued and fully paid:
Share capital
HK$

57,500,000
96,151,381

446,200,650
750,000,000

At 31 December 2017

153,651,381

1' 196,200,650

At 1 January 2018 and 31 December 2018

153,651,381

1' 196,200,650

At 1 January 2017
Issuance of shares

l

~

Number of
shares

24

Reserves
Investment
Revaluation
Reserve
HK$

'l
1

·"'

At 1 January 2017
Loss for the year
Shareholders' Contribution for the
year
Fair value adjustment on availablefor-sale fmancial instruments

l

.. 1

101,604,633

Retained
Earnings
HK$

Total
HK$

1,177,257,586

1,278,862,219

(712,219,274)

(712,219,274)

1,972,000,000

1,972,000,000

30 629 209

30 629,209

At 31 December 2017

132,233,842

1,972,000,000

465,038,312

2,569,272,154

At 1 January 2018, as per above

132,233,842

1,972,000,000

465,038,312

2,569,272,154

(455,903,467)

(455,903,467)

Loss for the year
Shareholders' Contribution for the
year
Fair value adjustment on availablefor-sale fmancial instruments

j

Capital
Reserve
HK$

At 31 December 2018

52,800,000

52,800,000

(116,197,059)
16,036,783
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2,024,800,000

9,134,845
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Note to cash flow statement
Reconciliation of loss before taxation to net cash outflow from operating activities:
2018
HK$

f

1

Note
Loss before taxation
Write-off of property and equipment
Depreciation
Amortisation of intangible assets
Amortisation of distribution agreement
Impairment of intangible assets
Net exchange gain
Dividend income
Interest income
Net loss/(gain) on revaluation and disposal of
financial assets and liabilities
Unwinding/(Discounting) of other payables at
initial recognition/subsequent measurement
Change in future insurance liabilities under
insurance contracts
Change in reinsurance assets and insurance debtors
Change in amount due from a fellow
subsidiary and intermediate holding company
Change in other receivables and prepayments
Change in insurance creditors
Change in other payables
Change in amount due to a fellow subsidiary
Change in trading securities and financial assets
designated at fair value through profit or loss
Change in available-for-sale financial assets
Change in derivative fmancial instruments

Cash outflow from operating activities
Taxation
Hong Kong profits tax paid

-I

Net cash outflow from operating activities

-57-

1

2017
HK$

(432,221,510)
169,135
4,971,287
11,598,656
56,394,135

(698,811,292)

6
6,9
6,10
6,10
10
5
5
5

(5,968,352)
(134,311,754)
(412,054,940)

644,780
11,130,429
23,943,697
683,235,413
(70,470,973)
(136,669,933)
(336,985,345)

5

1,158,948,742

(1,229,600,130)

5,386,556

(53,865,565)

1,049,545,544
(32,359,972)

1,930,552,655
(334, 781 ,870)

(53,182,923)
(334,597' 788)
1,137,127,570
638,554,587
(40,674,776)

(1,197,845)
43,217,311
818,483,539
(44,466,465)
(8,356,762)

(3,395,236,185)
190,520,642
11,347,991

(914,498,630)
298,837
(49,151,349)

(576,043,355)

(367,349,498)

{13,466,13 1)

{13,599,528}

~589,509,486l

p 80,949,026l

1
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Related party transactions
(i)

Income and expenses
The Company received and incurred the following income and expenses from the related
party transactions entered with former fellow subsidiary DSB before 18 June 20 17.
2018
2017
HK$
HK$
Premium received
4,059,009
Interest income received
2,846,094
Bank charges paid
4,548,116
Rental income received
2,408,000

;l

The Company has a tenancy agreement with Vanishing Border Investment Services
Limited, a fellow subsidiary of former fellow subsidiary DSB and incurred the following
expenses before 18 June 2017.
2018
2017
HK$
HK$
Rental of office premises
74,348
Premises management fee
23,791
For the year ended 31 December 2018
In accordance with the General Agency Agreement and the two addendums to this
General Agency Agreement entered into between the Company and Tahoe Insurance
Services Limited ("TISL"), a fellow subsidiary, the Company has agreed to pay a
service fee to TISL, which includes the cost of those administration and other supporting
functions, as well as the reimbursement of the remuneration for certain directors and
management of the Company with a profit mark-up based on the agreement and
addendums.
Included in "Service fee" ofHK$516,620,586 is the remuneration to certain directors of
the Company amounted to HK$7,392,835 plus a profit mark-up charged by the fellow
subsidiary.

I

!

For the year ended 31 December 2017
In accordance with the General Agency Agreement and an addendum to this General
Agency Agreement entered into between the Company and TISL, TISL has agreed to
provide insurance agency services, marketing and administrative services to the
Company. The Company has agreed to pay an agency management fee determined by
gross premium income of the Company and to reimburse certain expenses which include
the remuneration for certain directors of the Company based on the agreement and
addendum .

.J

Included in "Reimbursement of salary, commission and other expenses" of
HK$418,321 ,3 86 is the remuneration to certain directors of the Company amounted to
HK$6,418,3 53 charged by the fellow subsidiary.

-58-
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Related party transactions (Continued)

(i)

Income and expenses (Continued)
Transactions pursuant to the agreement and addendums are summarised below:
2018
HK$

,.1

Agency management fee paid
Reimbursement of salary, commission and other
expenses
Service fee paid to a fellow subsidiary

2017
HK$

17,399,627
418,321,386
516,620,586

In addition to the above, the Company together with Tahoe Insurance Services Limited
("Service Providers") has entered into a Service Agreement with a fellow subsidiary of
the Company, pursuant to which the Service Providers shall provide certain support
services (including administration and other supporting functions) to the fellow
subsidiary. According to the Service Agreement, Tahoe Insurance Services Limited shall
collect, on behalf of both Service Providers, the relevant service charges and transfer
such portion of the relevant service charge attributable to the Company. For the year
ended 31 December 2018, no service charge to the fellow subsidiary was attributable to
the Company.

,I

On 26 May 20 17, the Company entered into sales & purchase agreement with Fortune
Land Corporation Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Dah Sing Financial Holdings
Limited, the former holding company of the Company.
Consideration is shown below:
2018
HK$
Sales of Investment Properties
(ii)

2017
HK$
510,000,000

Investment in bonds issued by a fellow subsidiary of the Company
During the year, the Company purchased and disposed of certain bonds issued by a
fellow subsidiary of the Company. The Company has classified them as trading
securities and financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss. As at the
year end, the fair value of the outstanding investment in bonds issued by the fellow
subsidiary of the Company amounted to HK$79,355,959.

(iii)

...

'l

Balances with group companies

Expense recoverable from a fellow subsidiary
(Note 17)
Expense payable to a fellow subsidiary (Note 17)
Receivable from intermediate holding company
(Note 17)
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2018
HK$

2017
HK$

1,580,768
47,294,854

1,197,845
87,969,630

52,800,000
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Contingent liabilities and commitments
(a)

The Company, like all other insurers, is subject to the risk of litigation in the normal
course of its business. The Company does not expect that such litigation will have a
material effect on its profit or loss and financial condition.

(b)

Capital commitments
Capital expenditure in respect of projects and acquisition of fixed assets as at
31 December but not yet incurred is as follows:

HK.$

2017
HK$

7,563,702

2,912,237

2018

Expenditure contracted but not provided for
(c)

Operating lease commitments
Where the Company is the lessee, the future mtmmum lease payments under
non-cancellable building operating leases are as follows:
2018
HK.$

Not later than 1 year
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years
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25,663,059
52,544,967
78,208,026

2017
HK$
159,552
159,552
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Major non cash transaction
The Company has entered into a 15-year exclusive distribution agreement with DSB with effect
from 19 June 2017, pursuant to which the Company has agreed to appoint DSB as its nonexclusive insurance agent for the distribution of life insurance products in Hong Kong, at a total
consideration ofHK$2,500,000,000.
The upfront payment of HK$1,972,000,000 has been settled in cash with the DSB by an
intermediate holding company Everwin Enterprise (Hong Kong) Limited ("Everwin") on behalf
of the Company's immediate holding company, Thaihot Investment (Bermuda) Company
Limited ("Thaihot Bermuda") and Thaihot Bermuda pays on behalf of the Company. The
remaining consideration will be settled in 10 equal installments commencing on the first
anniversary and ending on the tenth anniversary of the exclusive distribution agreement. The
future installments payable have been discounted to a total present value ofHK$474,134,435 as
at 31 December 2017, which gave rise to a discount of other payables at initial recognition of
HK$53,865,565 in 2017.
On 13 March 2018, Everwin, Thaihot Bermuda, and the Company have entered into a Deed of
Waiver, whereby Everwin, upon confirmation, irrevocably has forgiven and waived the
outstanding amount owed to it by Thaihot Bermuda with effect from 28 December 20 17 and
agreed that, from 28 December 2017, Thaihot Bermuda shall have no obligations to pay back
any or all of the principal and the interest, if any, of the outstanding amount. On the same date,
Thaihot Bermuda, upon confirmation of the above, irrevocably has forgiven and waived the
outstanding amount owed to it by the Company with effect from 28 December 2017 and agrees
that the Company shall have no obligations to pay back any or all of the principal and the
interest, if any, of the outstanding amount from 28 December 2017. The amount waived during
the year was HK$52,800,000 (2017: HK$1,972,000,000). As at 31 December 2018, the total
amount waived amounting to HK$2,024,800,000 is recorded as shareholder's contribution under
Capital reserve (2017: HK$1,972,000,000).

1

-·

29

Reclassification of balance sheet items
During the current year, management reassessed the presentation of different line items and
made certain appropriate reclassifications: a reinsurance receivable reclassified from "Other
receivables and prepayments" to "Reinsurance assets and insurance debtors"; reinsurance
recoverable of death claims grossed up from "Insurance creditors" to "Reinsurance assets and
insurance debtors" and certain benefit payables to policyholders reclassified from "Other
payables" to "Insurance creditors". Accordingly, the comparative figures have been restated to
conform with current year's presentation.

l
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Approval of Financial Information

The financial information has been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 March
2019.
31

Financial Information presented under the Hong Kong Insurance Ordinance
Basis of Preparation

1

The Hong Kong Insurance Ordinance ("HKIO") requires that long-term business liabilities are
required to be determined based on the Insurance (Determination of Long Term Liabilities) Rules
("the Long Term Liabilities Determination Rules").
The principal accounting policies stated in note 2 above, are the policies adopted by the
Company before applying the Long Term Liabilities Determination Regulation.

r

No adjustments were required to be made to the assets and liabilities reported in the statement of
financial position in order to comply with the HKIO.

l
32

Profit and loss accounts presented under the Third Schedule of the Insurance Ordinance

Note
Amounts transferred from I (to) revenue account
presented under the Third Schedule of the
Insurance Ordinance
- Life and annuity
- Linked long term

33
34

2017
HK$

(351,002,011)
2,763,591

(166, 709,650)
(2,953,877)

(348,238,420)

(169,663,527)

Impairment of intangible assets- distribution
agreement

10

Amortisation of intangible assets -distribution
agreement

10

(56,394,135)

(23,943,697)

Management and other expenses

39

(6,035,246)

(16, 720,04 7)

Investment income and other income not included
in the long term business fund

36

(45,275,939)

181,343,410

(455,943,740)

(712,219,274)

Loss before taxation
Taxation

7

Loss after taxation

(683,235,413)

40,273
(455,903,467)

J
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(712,219,274)
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Life and annuity revenue account of the long term business fund presented under the Third
Schedule of the Insurance Ordinance
Note

2018
HK$

2017
HK$

Gross insurance premium income

3,153,747,742

1,924,882,83 7

Insurance premium ceded to reinsurers

(285,192,873)

(305,650,284)

f

Income

Net insurance premium income

35

2,868,554,869

1,619,232,553

Investment income and other income

36

(524,605,008)

1,549,154,531

-~..z~43 ,949,86 t____]2_lj~,3 8Zt.Q~~--

Expenses
Gross claims, surrenders, interest and other
insurance policy benefits

1,080,349,543

1,136,766,582

Amounts recoverable from reinsurers

(227,502,016)

(219,606,663)

852,847,527

917,159,919

1,103,444,264

1,753,595,436

596,332,318

529,358,225

118,662,185

121,644,486

(23,665,578)

(13,338,668)

(351,002,011)

(166,709,650)

Net claims, surrenders, interest and other
insurance policy benefits

38

Increase in future insurance liabilities under
insurance contracts

39

Management and other expenses
Dividends to insurance policyholders

Taxation
Amount transferred to profit and loss account
presented under the Third Schedule of the
Insurance Ordinance
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Linked long term revenue account of the long term business fund presented under the Third
Schedule of the Insurance Ordinance
Note

2018
HK$

2017
HK$

6,876,435

8,409,060

(9,478)

(7,364)

Income

l

Gross insurance premium income
Insurance premium ceded to reinsurers
Net insurance premium income

35

6,866,957

8,401,696

Investment income and other income

36

(37,309,725)

103,680,265

______Q~-i~~)._z~-~l__________n~!Q_~ ,96J___
Expenses
Net claims and surrenders

38

Increase in future insurance liabilities under
insurance contracts
Management and other expenses

39

44,278,042

24,434,106

(78,906,384)

88,043,416

1,365,331

2,489,002

______Q1_~-~~)._QL!1________ni~-~-~!~~i __
Taxation
Amount transferred from profit and loss account
presented under the Third Schedule of the
Insurance Ordinance
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(56,652)

(69,314)

2,763,591

~2,953,877l
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35

Net Insurance Premium Income
The Company does not assume any inward reinsurance business.

l
1

Gross premium income and reinsurance contracts ceded in respect of life and annuity and linked
long term direct underwriting businesses are as follows:

New
policies
HK$

Regular
premium
policies
HK$

Single
premium
policies
HK$

1,574,313,659
(81,945,238)

1,579,372,560
(203,247,635)

61,523

3, 153,747,742
(285,192,873)

2,342

6,216,994
(9,478)

657,099

6,876,435
(9,478)

Total
HK$

Year ended 31 December 2018

I

l

Life and annuity
Gross premium income
Reinsurance contracts ceded

Linked long term
Gross premium income
Reinsurance contracts ceded

·---=2=,34~--·· 6,20_7,51£_ ____657,099___ ~~§~957-

Net premium income

1,492,370,763

1,382,332,441

718,622

2,875,421,826

436,080,854
(161,413,119)

1,403,301,451
(60,361,432)

85,500,532
(83,875,733)

1,924,882,837
(305,650,284)

Year ended 31 December 2017
Life and annuity
Gross premium income
Reinsurance contracts ceded

-- 27~,667,7~?__ l.~~~2_!0,0!2______!_,624,1?_2____l!~lJ,2~2,5_53 ..
Linked long term
Gross premium income
Reinsurance contracts ceded

Net premium income

(1,535)

7,882,131
(7,364)

528,464

8,409,060
(7,364)

274,666,200

1,350,814,786

2,153,263

1,627,634,249
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Investment income and other Income

1
l1

'l
'1
f

1
I

2018
HK$

2017
HK$

377,703,868
124,485,549

327,512,846
125,887,983
8,521,925

(998,185,471)
109,707,499

1,006,028, 738
606,135

(137,713,409)
(5,945,887)

17,519,010
(6,481,557)

Investment income
Net exchange gain
Miscellaneous income

(529,947,851)
5,311,214
31,629

1,479,595,080
69,545,964
13,487

Investment (loss)/income and other income (Note 33)

(524,605,008)

1,549,154,531

Life and annuity
Interest income
Dividend income
Rental income
Net (loss)/gain on revaluation of trading securities and fmancial
assets designated at fair value through profit or loss and
derivatives
Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale fmancial assets
Net (loss)/gain on disposal of trading securities and fmancial assets
designated at fair value through profit or loss and derivatives
Investment handling charges and other fees

Linked long term
Interest income

. I

9,896

Net (loss)/gain on revaluation of trading securities and financial
assets designated at fair value through profit or loss and
derivatives
Net exchange gain
Miscellaneous income

(42,741,554)

99,071,160

62,529
5,359,404

66,999
4,542,106

Investment (loss)/income and other income (Note 34)

(37,309,725)

103,680,265

34,341,176
9,826,205

9,472,499
10,781,950

(68, 730,546)
2,156,716

105,937,737

(23,441,977)
(22,122)

437,350
(9,701)
53,865,565

Investment (loss)/income
Net exchange gain

(45,870,548)
594,609

180,485,400
858,010

Investment income and other income (Note 32)

{45,275,939}

181,343,410

(607,190,672)

1,834,178,206

Non long term

"l
j

Interest income
Dividend income
Net (loss)/gain on revaluation of trading securities and fmancial
assets designated at fair value through profit or loss and
derivatives
Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale fmancial assets
Net (loss)/gain on disposal of trading securities and frnancial assets
designated at fair value through profit or loss and derivatives
Investment handling charges and other fees
Discounting of other payables at initial recognition

Total
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Commissions
A fellow subsidiary provides full management and administration services to the Company
pursuant to which commissions were paid by the fellow subsidiary and reimbursed through the
General Agency Agreement as described in note 26(i) as follows:

New
policies
HK$

Regular
premium
policies
HK$

137,442,238
(6,843,106)

11,690,691
(16,972,859)

Single
premium
policies
HK$

Total
HK$

Year ended 31 December 2018
Life and annuity
Commissions
Reinsurance commission

(30,331)

149,102,598
(23,815,965)

___l~_Q!~2?21}_~_______0._!~~1J 6~l______ Q_9_J_:m____]_~~}}~§2.~~1___
Linked long term
Commissions
Reinsurance commission

Net commissions

5,798

67,583

9,848

83,229

130,604,930

(5,214,585)

(20,483)

125,369,862

96,899,076
(12,499,177)

13,718,880
(4,674,144)

2,554,050
(6,494,996)

113,172,006
(23,668,317)

' I

Year ended 31 December 2017

:I
l

Life and annuity
Commissions
Reinsurance commission

-----~~~22&9__2_____~Q!~2.z~ ___Q!2_±922_~~L__~2_,-~Q;?A~2__

Linked long term
Commissions
Reinsurance commission

Net commissions

(1,293)

107,163

11,438

117,308

84,398,606

9,151,899

(3,929,508)

89,620,997
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Net claims, surrender, interest and other insurance policy benefits
Periodic cash payments comprise guaranteed cash payments due to the policyholders.
Death

,,

claims

Surrenders

Maturity

Others

Total

HK$

HK$

HK$

HK$

HK$

Year ended 31 December 2018
Life and annuity

' j

I

1

Direct

39,457,934

145,736,370

512,910,647

382,244,592

1,080,349,543

Reinsurance
recoverable

(7,839,267)

(16,970,094)

(157,939,849)

(44,752,806)

(227,502,016)

31,618,667

128,766,276

354,970,798

337,491,786

852,847,527

17,271

43,926 711

334,060

44,278,042

31,635,938

172,692,987

354,970,798

337,825,846

897,125,569

32,327,735

101,692,960

692,115,693

310,630,194

1,136,766,582

(1 0,725,660)

(8,535,058)

(155,859,387)

(44,486,558)

(219,606,663)

21,602,075

93,157,902

536;256,306

266,143,636

917,159,919

18,645

24,434,106

266,162,281

941,594,025

Linked long term
Direct

Year ended 31 December 2017
Life and annuity
Direct
Reinsurance
recoverable

Linked long term
Direct

24,415,461
21,602,075

117,573,363
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Management and other expenses

2018
HK$

2017
HK$

4,960,471
11,573,421
3,686,684
5,664,091

641,975
11,082,016
3,288,156
12,743,581
17,323,945
416,501,852

Life and annuity

i

,

.

Depreciation
Amortisation of intangible assets
Auditor's remuneration
Professional fees
Management fee paid to a fellow subsidiary
Reimbursement of expenses to a fellow subsidiary
Service fee paid to a fellow subsidiary
Commissions recoverable from reinsurers
Advertising and promotion expenses
Write-off of fixed assets
Other operating expenses

515,496,597
(23,815,965)
40,658,972
168,767
37,939,280

(23,668,317)
63,123,302
28,321,715

Linked long term
Depreciation
Amortisation of intangible assets
Auditors' remuneration
Professional fees
Management fee paid to a former fellow subsidiary
Reimbursement of expenses to a fellow subsidiary
Service fee paid to a fellow subsidiary
Advertising and promotion expenses
Write-off of fixed assets
Other operating expenses

'lJ

10,816
25,235
8,038
12,350

2,805
48,413
14,365
55,672
75,682
1,819,534

1,123,989
88,653
368
95,882

275,761
196,770

Non long term
Amortisation of distribution agreement (Note 32)
Other operating expenses (Note 32)

56,394,135
6,035,246

23,943,697
16,720,047

-----------~~J_i?J_,_~~-!___________40, ~§2ii__

660,127,030

Total

572,510,971

Management and other expenses are apportioned on the basis of gross premium written.
I

I

.l
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SCHEDULE 1
LIFE AND ANNUITY- NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2018
2018

2017

HK$

HK$

50,042,483
23,148,305

3,265,652
23,072,538

14,323,131,569
23,646,698
30,135,060
1,633,382,574
1,580,768
455,479,425
1,900,747,286

12,339,938,758
25,489,461
222,831,830
1,601,022,602
1,197,845
99,819,593
1,457,695,305

47,294,854

87,969,630

13,772,182,534
3,648,026,985
16,760,448
744,326,317
10,432,598

12,643,547,701
2,510,905,613
7,255,220
108,155,395
163,837

202,270,432

416,336,188

Assets
Property and equipment
Intangible assets - computer software
Trading securities and fmancial assets designated at fair
value through profit or loss
Derivative financial instruments
Available-for-sale financial assets
Reinsurance assets and insurance debtors
Amounts due from a fellow subsidiary
Other receivables and prepayments
Bank balances

Liabilities
Amounts due to a fellow subsidiary
Liabilities under insurance contracts
- future insurance liabilities
- insurance creditors
Derivative financial instruments
Other payables
Current income tax liabilities

Net assets

1

J
- 70-

1
TAHOE LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

q

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL INFORMATION

1

I

SCHEDULE 1 (Continued)
UNIT LINKED- NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2018

1

2018

2017

HK$

HK$

369,357,929
153,329
18,249,896

449,089,707
2,859,012
2,240,000

375,348,660
6,198
(200,677)
56,652

454,437,949

12,550,321

328,494

Assets

f '

Trading securities and fmancial assets designated at fair
value through profit or loss
Other receivables and prepayments
Bank balances

'l
Liabilities
Liabilities under insurance contracts
-future insurance liabilities
- insurance creditors
Other payables
Current income tax liabilities

Net assets

I

J
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SCHEDULE 1 (Continued)
NON LONG TERM BUSINESS- NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2018

n
l

2018

2017

HK$

HK$

1,736,426,755

1,792,820,890

826,761,671
52,800,000
21,505,860
827,350,394

601,987,840

Assets

- i'
Intangible assets - distribution agreement
Trading securities and fmancial assets designated at fair
value through profit or loss
Amounts due from intermediate holding company
Other receivables and prepayments
Bank balances

1,306,219
1,431,702,741

Liabilities

433,493,155

Other payables
Current income tax liabilities

478,969,295
40,273
_ _4..:_:7. .:_9'?. .: 0.09 ~.?68

3,031,351,525

Net assets

J

j
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF TAHOE LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Opinion
What we have audited

1

The financial information of Tahoe Life Insurance Company Limited (the "Company") set out on pages
9 to 72, which comprise:
• the statement of financial position as at 31 December 20 18;
• the income statement and statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;
• the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;
• the cash flow statement and the revenue account for the year then ended; and
• notes to the financial information, including a summary of significant accounting policies (referred
as "financial information" thereafter).
Opinion

In our opinion, the financial information gives a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs
as at 31 December 2018, and of its loss and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") and is prepared, in all material respects, in
accordance with the provisions of the Hong Kong Insurance Ordinance (the "Ordinance").
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") and with
reference to Practice Note 810.2 (Revised), "The Duties of the Auditor of an Insurer authorized under the
Insurance Ordinance" issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA").
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Information section of our report.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
Independence

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants ("the Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.
Emphasis of Matter- Basis of Accounting and Restriction on Use
We draw attention to note 31 to the fmancial information, which describes the basis of accounting. The
financial information is prepared to assist the Company in complying with the provisions of the
Ordinance. As a result, the financial information may not be suitable for another purpose. Our report is
intended solely for the submissions by the Company to the Hong Kong Insurance Authority and the
Registrar of Companies and is not intended to be, and should not be, distributed to or used by anyone for
any other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of our report. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

J
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Other Information

1
'l

I

l
'l

f
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l
I

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Report of the Directors, but does not include the fmancial information
and our auditor's report thereon.
Our opinion on the financial information does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial information, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial information or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
Responsibilities of Directors and Audit Committee for the Financial Information
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial information that gives a true
and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the provisions of the Ordinance
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
information that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial information, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

j

j

In addition, the directors are required to maintain proper records in accordance with Section 16 of the
Ordinance and to maintain the greater of the required margin of solvency attributable to its long term
business as determined by the Company's appointed actuary in accordance with the Insurance (Margin of
Solvency) Rules and the relevant amount applicable as defmed in the Ordinance (the "minimum solvency
requirements").

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Information

•J

j

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial information as a whole is
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of this financial information. In addition, we express opinion on whether proper records have been
maintained in accordance with Section 16 of the Ordinance and as to whether the value of the assets of
the Company as determined under the Ordinance exceeds its liabilities by not less than the minimum
solvency requirements applicable as at year end.
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Information (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
•

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial information, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

•

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

•

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

•

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the financial information or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

•

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial information, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial information represents the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

'l;

We communicate with Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF TAHOE LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

REPORT ON MATTERS UNDER PARAGRAPHS 4(1) AND (JAA) OF PART 1 OF SCHEDULE 3
TO HONG KONG INSURANCE ORDINANCE

The required margin of solvency, as determined by the Company's appointed actuary in accordance with
the Insurance (Margin of Solvency) Rules, being greater than the relevant amount applicable, as defined
in section 10 of the Ordinance, amounted to HK$540,771,579 (2017: HK$495,460,923) as at 31
December 2018.
In our opinion:
(i)

proper records have been maintained in accordance with Section 16 of the Ordinance in respect
ofthe year ended 31 December 2018; and

(ii)

the value of the assets of the Company as stated in the financial information exceeds its liabilities
by not less than HK$540,771,579 (2017: HK$495,460,923) as at 31 December 2018.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 28 March 2019

J

I

I

J

I
J

- 76-

